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DESCR!BE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Cahaba, also spelled Cahawba, is located slightly south of the juncture

of the Cahaba and Alabama rivers on the west side of the Alabama River about
fourteen miles south of Selma. The landmark was the site of Alabama's

first permanent capital from 1820 to 1826. T '

There are a few scattered structural evidences surviving in the town. Part
of the walls and a column of the Methodist Church built in 1849 still remain
after a fire in 1954. The Fambro House built in 1840 by “Jidge William W.
Fambro is still used as a dwelling. Columns of the Crocheron Mansion still

stand, along with street markers and a cemetery.

In its heyday, Cahaba was a thriving city with the capitol building as its
focal point. The town had numerous shops, warehouses, hotels, boarding
houses, homes, schools, and the 1ike required For a state ‘capital city and
busy river port. There were a number of fine mansions among which particu-
larly notable were the homes of the merchants Crocheron and Perine. The
palatial Perine Mansion had one of the first if not the first air-condition-
ing systems developed in the South. Water from the deepest artesian well
in the world (900 feet) was pumped through pipes in the walls of the 26
rooms to cool the house. The Crocheron House was the site of the meeting
between General James H. Wilson and General Nathan "Bedford Foxrest to ex-

cﬁange “prisoners after the battle of Selma on April 2, 1865.

The Alabama Historical Commission and the Cahaba Historical Commission plan
to create an interpretive historical and recreational park on the site.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE \{\Ei,i “‘6"\:\\/?
The first permament capital of Alabama was located at Cahaba In Dallas
County. "Cahaba was probably the site of the Indian village of Casiste
which DeSoto passed In 1540. It is thought also to be the site of &
trading fort built In"theé early 18th century by officers of the Parisian
merchant Crozart who in 1730 was granted the area by King Louis XV. The
“fort was soon abandoned and little was heard about the site until 1816
when it was established as an election district of Montgomery County.

In 1818 the territorial legislature meeting at St. Stephens created a
commission headed by Clement Clay to recommend a site for a permanent
capital of Alabama. According to William H. Brantley, author of Three
Capitals, the Commission recommended to Governor William Wyatt Bibb that
Tuscaloosa be made the permanent capital. Whether this is true or not,
Bibb practically forced the selection of Cahaba upon the legislature by
securing a 1620-acre land grant to the state for establishing the state
government at the site. In 1818 Dallas County was established and Cahaba
became the county seat the following year. ‘

Willis Roberts and Benjamin Clements were appointed by Governor Bibb to
survey the site and lay out a town. In May, 1819, the first land auction
was held, and 182 lots were sold for $123,856 of which $30,964 was in
cash which went into the State treasury. The legislature appropriated
$10,000 for a capitol building to be completed by June, 1820. The build-
ing, a two—stgf?”ﬁ?iék building, was 158 feet long and 43 feet wide and
was located at the corner of Capitol Avenue and Vine Street.

While Cahaba was being established, Huntsville became the temporary capi-
tal of Alabama and was the site of the first constitutional convention.
One provision of the Constitution gtated that Cahaba would be the perma-
nent capital unless another town was selected in five years. A powerful
faction in North Alabama was determined that Cahaba would not remain the
capital of Alabama.

Before the first session of the Alabama legislature in November, 1820,
Governor William Wyatt Bibb died as a result of a riding accident, and
Cahaba lost its most influential champion. His brother Thomas Bibb became
acting governor, but Thomas came from Limestone County in the Tennessee
Valley and did not share William Bibb's championship of the Alabama -
Cahaba river faction.
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8. Significance (Continued)

Cahaba grew rapidly between 1820 and 1825. The State Supreme Court was
organized with Clement C. Clay as Chief Justice. A state bank was set up
with a $2,000,000 capitalization. General Lafayette was entertained there
in 1825 during his tour through the state. Unfortunately 1825 was the
year of the great flood which inundated the city. Part of the Statehouse
crumbled during the flood. _As a result the legislature voted to move the
capital to Tuscaloosa which was done in 1826.-

Cahaba practically became a ghost town. The legislature instructed the
State Tfeasirer to sell the capitol building for not less than $3,000.

When no buyer could be found, the structure was given to Dallas County in
1829 for use as a courthouse. In 1834 Dallas County constructed a new
courthouse within Arch Street at the corner of Vine and First Avenue North.
In 1837 the capital lot and the one next to it were sold to Matthew Gage
for $349.50. 1In all probability the Capitol had been torn down and the
material used in the new courthouse.

In the 1840'3 and 1850's the town became the commercial, social~_§nd
éﬁlpping center of the rich Black Belt area surrounding it. "Its importance
was increased in 1859 by the construction of the railroad from Marion to
Cahaba which brought a greater volume of goods into Cahaba to be shipped on
the Alabama River.

During the Civil War there was a large Confederate prison located at Cahaba.
Shortly before the end of the war another flood inundated the town and as a
result in the following year, 1866, the county seat was moved to Selma. The
‘town slowly died after that and by the turn-of-the-century Cahaba was a
gﬁbst town.
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